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HEARING RECOMMENCED 2.28pm 

PRESIDENT:    We've got a change in appearances?  

MR M. WATSON:    Changes in relation to the Tasmanian Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry, Mr President. MARK WATSON appearing 
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PRESIDENT:    Yes, very good. Thanks, Mr Watson. Mr Paterson? 

MR PATERSON:    Mr President, because of Mr Cameron not being able 
to be here today and I received yesterday and only have recently 
managed to print off his response to the matters that were discussed 
at the last hearing. 

What we'd like to do today is discuss the manner in which this matter 
may be progressed. My first reading of the document put to me by Mr 
Cameron is that in a number of respects there are improvements in 
some matters that actually improve the proposed award. For instance, 
in the classifications when one looks at -  

PRESIDENT:    In the descriptors? 

MR PATERSON:    The classification descriptors - when one looks at, 
say, for instance, business services worker grade 2, general 
requirements, it would be made more generic to read, employees in 
this grade perform tasks, rather than clerical and office tasks. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. 

MR PATERSON:    So it gives it wider application. A few more specific 
provisions, similarly under that same (b) general requirements, but (ii) 
he has suggested the words be added, initiate telephone calls and 
conduct telephone sales using defined procedures. Again, that extends 
it and is consistent with what we discussed previously.  

For the most part, I am in a position to indicate that I agree with most 
of the matters that are put to me by Mr Cameron. I am prepared to 
briefly identify those matters that I will need to have further 
consideration of. They go to the rates for junior employees, suggested 
changes to the shift work provisions and things that relate, basically, 
to minimum hours provisions in relation to mixed functions, Saturday 
and Sunday and public holiday work. 

PRESIDENT:    Are these the areas that you want further time on? 

MR PATERSON:    These are the areas in which I need to have further 
discussions with Mr Cameron to try and reach a consent position. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes.  
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MR PATERSON:    I think that in fact covers most of the differences in 
our position. The other one that I can't agree to almost on a principle 
basis is the provision we put in for union representatives which came 
from the Clerical and Administrative Employees Award which, in 
essence, afforded recognition to an accredited representative of the 
union and it allowed necessary time during working hours for that 
person to conduct union business. I'm not going to hang the whole 
award on that provision because, ultimately, I think it's how we go 
about our business not the prescriptions that are contained in awards 
that make a difference to what unions are able to do in these work 
places. 
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PRESIDENT:    Well, in the end the Act helps you there anyway, Mr 
Paterson. 

MR PATERSON:    I would have to have, obviously, a close look at the 
Act to see what distinctions might be made between union officials and 
workplace representatives but, yes, I'll bear that in mind for that 
reason and also given -  

PRESIDENT:    The provision you're dealing with now is for workplace 
reps rather than -  

MR PATERSON:    An employee who is appointed as a union 
representative. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes, I see. 

MR PATERSON:    Rather than a union official. On the other hand, 
there are other protections afforded to union representatives 

Another major change that Mr Cameron's proposed, I can indicate that 
I will, in all likelihood agree to, is that whereas the union had proposed 
a fairly extensive disputes and grievance procedure, that is not 
acceptable to the Chamber of Commerce and Industry and they are 
proposing what is in effect the standard grievance procedure in most 
awards of this commission. 

Given that that is a widespread clause, I'm inclined to agree to that. 
Whilst I do have a belief that in this area, well in all areas, effectively, 
a small business, something more is required.  

However, taking all of that into account, I believe that there really are 
only three major areas that we need to further negotiate. They are the 
issue of the application of what substantive classification is used for 
junior rates when the percentages are applied, the provisions in 
relation to shift work, which are not substantive but they're about the 
time at which particular shifts start and finish and whether there 
should be a night shift loading in addition to an afternoon shift loading 
and those other matters that go to the minimum hours. 
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For the rest, the classifications and the wage rates which are clearly a 
substantive part of this agreement and most of the matters that relate 
to hours of work and penalty payments and leave are either in 
accordance with the commission's standards or agreed.  

Subject to what you, Mr President, would see as the way this matter 
ought be progressed, I would suggest that if it was possible that this 
award be made on presentation of an agreed draft order to yourself 
and subject to, obviously, you calling a hearing if there is any matter 
that you believe requires further discussion or submission before you 
prior to the matter being made. 
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I would also seek clarification from you, given that this matter has 
extended over some period of time, as to what submissions you require 
in terms of the final making of this award. If the commission pleases. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. All right. Thanks, Mr Paterson. Do you want to 
make any submissions at this point, Mr Watson? 

MR WATSON:    Only to indicate, Mr President, that Mr Cameron has 
indicated to me that the matters that Mr Paterson has alluded to that 
are not agreed at this stage, Mr Cameron is confident that they will in 
fact be agreed with some further discussions. They're not major issues, 
and we would hope, as Mr Paterson has said, that a consent draft 
order can be produced in the near future. 

I guess that's probably all I want to say at this stage but we're quite 
happy with Mr Paterson's approach to effectively getting the approval 
of the award-making process today to save another hearing and then 
actually supplying you with a consent order, if that's acceptable to the 
commission. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. All right. Thanks. Well, I guess really all you want 
to hear from me then, your question to me, Mr Paterson, what I want 
to hear from you in relation to further submissions.  

I think the commission needs to know just what the clauses are 
modelled on. If they're drawn from another award, which is strict 
relevance, then that's all the commission needs to know, from my 
point of view.  

If the consent order departs from any of the standards, I certainly 
want to know why and if there are any other variations that draw on 
another award which can be related to this work, then I'd like to hear 
about that. I'd also like to have some indication as to the existing 
standards that apply in industry. Whatever you can do on that - that 
might be difficult but of course the principle for making new awards 
goes to the question of existing standards or conditions. 

MR PATERSON:    Mr President, I can indicate that in relation to the 
making of the award and the first award principles, the union doesn't 
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have any broad survey of existing rates and conditions in the industry 
at large, however, it's our submission that to a large extent 
organisations, businesses within the scope of this award are currently 
either subject in respect of a considerable number of their employees 
to the Clerical and Administrative (Private Sector) Award and I believe 
that has been a matter that has been addressed in the course of this 
hearing. 
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A number of the areas where the application of the Clerical and 
Administrative Employees (Private Sector) Award may be open to 
contest, it would be our submission that there too that award is often 
relied on as a guide in areas which may indeed extend beyond its strict 
application. For instance, in the areas of tele-sales and fundraising, 
the agreement we have registered in the commission with Red Cross - 
The Red Cross Tele-marketing Agreement, draws heavily on the 
Clerical and Administrative Employees (Private Sector) Award as its 
parent award and as a base for negotiating rates that are contained in 
that agreement. 

From my knowledge of other fundraising services, such as Royal Guide 
Dogs fundraising service, my advice from members working there, is 
that the rates would be consistent with the application here, that the 
rates that their tele-marketers are being paid fall within, for the most 
part, grade 1 of the proposed rates in this award which, as we 
discussed at our last hearing, is the point at which the parties, on the 
union's submission and I believe we have consent on this matter, that 
that would be the minimum rate, the business services grade 1, this 
classification shall be the minimum classification for all employees 
engaged in tele-marketing, tele-sales, telephone service workers or 
call-centre workers. I'd submit that that minimum is consistent with 
existing rates and conditions in the industry. 

Further, and although it may be a bit of trickery, the provision in the 
scope clause preserves the Clerical and Administrative Employees 
(Private Sector) Award's operation, where employees were previously 
covered by that. I think that that, in itself, is an indication that that in 
terms of standards already established in the commission, that that 
award is prima facie very good evidence and the agreement to have 
that provision in this reflects the fact that a significant number of 
employees covered by this award -  

PRESIDENT:    Where does that appear?  

MR PATERSON:    I am looking in clause (d) of scope. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes.  

MR PATERSON:    Which doesn't extend the coverage of the Clerical 
and Administrative Award, all it does is preserve it until such time as 
the making of this award in its full detail. That subclause of the scope 
would be deleted in the draft order that is about to be put to you.  
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PRESIDENT:    I'm sorry, I'm confused about that. What are you saying 
in respect of (b)(i), I take it? Is that what you're referring to? 

MR PATERSON:    Scope clause (d). 

PRESIDENT:    Sorry, (d). I don't have that.  

MR PATERSON:    It would have been already deleted from the draft 
that is in front of you. It is in the award as it currently stands - the 
award as it currently stands made in terms of scope, title, index, 
operation and parties, award interest has that clause (d) in the scope 
clause, subclause (d), paragraph (d). 
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PRESIDENT:    I just want to read that so I understand the 
submission. Yes, I don't have the actual award as made and scope and 
title. What did it say in (d)? 

MR PATERSON:    Paragraph (d) reads: 

Until the making of this award has been finalised in respect of 
wages and conditions of employment or until this subclause is 
deleted employees covered by the Clerical and Administrative 
Employees (Private Sector) Award, prior to the operative date of 
this award, shall continue to be covered by that award. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. While I was reading that - I'm sorry to take you off 
your train of thought - while I was trying to determine where I was in 
relation to your submission, I had another look at (b)(i) of scope and it 
made me concerned that there could be some clash between this 
award and Clerical and Admin by the use of the words, administrative, 
clerical? 

MR PATERSON:    The issue there, fundamentally, connects to the 
reason for making this award in the first place, that the Clerical and 
Administrative Award is an occupational award, as you're obviously 
well aware and that by using those terms here, what we're talking 
about is a business, the business of an employer, the undertaking of 
an employer, which is the business of providing administrative 
services. So the branch office, the secretarial birds, business services 
that are actually in the business of providing clerical or administrative 
services to other employers or community organisations, football clubs 
and whatever.  

My understanding, and correct me if I'm wrong, but this as an 
industry award would take precedence over the occupational award 
because - I'd have to quickly look back to it, the Clerical and 
Administrative Award, I believe, doesn't have application where 
employees are covered by another award of the commission, so this 
award being an industry award I would say, in most cases, I believe 
would take precedence effectively over the occupational award. 
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PRESIDENT:    I suppose 'take precedence' is one way of describing it. 

MR PATERSON:    It may not be correct terminology. Certainly, in 
respect of the rates of pay and classifications, I don't see that there'd 
be any problem created. 

PRESIDENT:    No, I'm just concerned about the potential for people to 
be uncertain as to what award was relevant. 
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MR PATERSON:    I would argue that it's no different to an Automotive 
Industries Award which has clerical classifications in it, or covers 
clerical work done in the automotive industry, in principle. The issue 
would come down to what is the industry of the employer.  

PRESIDENT:    Yes, but of course the Automotive Industries Award 
doesn't have as part of its scope the provision of administrative or 
clerical services. 

MR PATERSON:    No.  

PRESIDENT:    Conversely, it does provide for the provision of 
automotive services. Yes, it's an interesting little conundrum but I 
think you're probably right. The industry is that of the provision of 
business services. 

MR PATERSON:    My submission to you would be, from my 
recollection, they would be the submissions made to you when this 
award was made in respect of scope. 

PRESIDENT:    They certainly were made but it didn't have that 
particular emphasis but I think it's satisfactory as is. Sorry to have 
side tracked you. 

MR PATERSON:    No problem. To a very large extent, the provisions in 
this award are sourced, do rely on the provisions of the Clerical and 
Administrative Employees (Private Sector) Award, not only in relation 
to that wage fixing principle but also in terms of the other specific 
provisions of the award. 

I would suggest that, on a quick scan of the contents of the index, the 
only provision that has no nexus to that award at all is the shiftwork 
clause. The Clerical and Administrative Employees Award has a 
provision that effectively says, by agreement between the employer and 
employee with the consent of the union shiftwork arrangements may 
be entered into.  So, that is a new and different clause. 

Certainly, with the parties agreeing to use the standard grievance and 
discipline procedure that, again, as with the leave provisions are not 
only common and sourced from the Clerical and Administrative 
Employees Award but reflect relatively universal standards across the 
state commission. 
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The classification descriptors themselves, aside from the variations 
that I mentioned previously to accommodate some of the industry-
specific duties and to make the application more general, in the 
greater part those provisions are in fact that in the Clerical and 
Administrative Employees Award. Similarly, the wage rates are 
identical to the Clerical and Administrative Employees Award pending 
the resolution of the issue of whether there ought be a single scale of 
junior rates of pay. Supported wage clause, clearly, is the state 
standard. 
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The annualised salary agreements, fundamentally is sourced and I 
believe very comparable to the Clerical and Administrative Employees 
Award. However, I have reformatted and reworded that to try to make 
it read more clearly. Payment of wages and superannuation - payment 
of wages is identical to the current award, I believe. Superannuation 
clause -  

PRESIDENT:    Annualised salary agreements? 

MR PATERSON:    Annualised salary agreements, as I just said, is not 
identical to the award but the changes made to it are, I submit, not 
substantive changes, they're format and in an attempt to make the 
language and the clause read better. There are no major departures 
from the provisions in the Clerical and Admin Award. 

Superannuation clause is a considerable simplification and would be - 
effectively, we were saying there, is that subparagraph (b) preserves 
the provision for monthly payments which is the only provision that I 
can identify in the superannuation clause which is in any way better 
than the obligations under the relevant federal legislation and that is 
how that matter is agreed to be addressed in the award. 

PRESIDENT:    What's the situation with the superannuation choice of 
fund changes? They've not been proclaimed yet, have they? 

MR PATERSON:    No. I believe that they were put into, very much, a 
bucket of ice water for a while.  

PRESIDENT:    If there is to be any change, this clause would have to 
be revisited.  

MR WATSON:    Excuse me. I understand, Mr President, that the 
federal legislation in relation to choice of fund only affects federal 
awards and for it to affect state awards, Tasmania would actually have 
to enact enabling legislation. 

PRESIDENT:    Is that right? 

MR WATSON:    Yes, that's my understanding of it.  

PRESIDENT:    It's that specific. Okay.  
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MR PATERSON:    Allowances are straight from the Clerical and 
Administrative Award. The hours of work, penalty payments and 
overtime are straight from the Clerical and Administrative Employees 
Award, however, noting that some of the matters that the parties are 
still yet to reach agreement on relate particularly to the overtime in 
terms of both the period for which an employee is entitled to time and 
a half and the minimum payments. That matter is not yet finalised 
and over, further on in this clause, at, I believe it's - certainly at clause 
54 in the draft that I'm looking at, the Saturday, Sunday work, the 
minimum payment and the period for which time and half is paid is a 
matter still under discussion. 
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Shiftwork is a minimal provision and it really just seeks to apply what 
I understand to be a standard in the state commission, however, the 
matters there at paragraph (c) are also matters that are not yet 
finalised. However, I don't believe that there is any great departure. 
The only other thing I would say there is, that if there's no difference 
between a night shift and an afternoon shift in terms of the penalty 
rate, then the issue as where the boundary between the two is, is 
almost irrelevant.  

Moving through to leave and holidays with pay, this clause does vary 
from the Clerical and Admin Award in that it puts the word 'hours' 
after 152.  

PRESIDENT:    I'm pleased about that. 

MR PATERSON:    Some of these things slip people's notice for so long 
that they almost become part of the framework. In bereavement leave, 
there is a slight departure from the standard, in that a grandchild is 
added to the categories of relations. That is by consent of the parties.  

Carer's leave and parental leave follow the standards of the state 
commission. The parental leave clause follows the parental leave 
arrangements entered into as advised to the commission and by 
yourself to other commissioners. I would just note there in passing 
that at page - I'm not sure that we're looking at the same page 
numbers, but if you go to the part-time work provision (g) - on my 
copy, it's on page 39, go through to (viii) - Extension of Hours, I noted 
that in the copy that was provided to the commission and 
subsequently sent out, the reference at the end of that paragraph was 
incorrect. It actually referred to the numbering of the old parental 
clause. 

PRESIDENT:    Oh, dear. 

MR PATERSON:    And it should be as it is in this, in accordance with 
paragraph (vi). The draft as provided to you and as sent out had a four 
point something point something. I guess I bear as much responsibility 
for that as anyone else, given the work I did on the TTLC'S position. 
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Sick leave, similarly, it's state standard and in common with the 
Clerical and Administrative Award. The consultation and dispute 
resolution clause is in line with the Clerical and Admin Award. It 
departs slightly to accommodate the position of the TCCI and I'd 
suggest that our agreement to this probably doesn't indicate any 
agreement from any other union but in terms of workplace agreements 
and the requirements for unions to be a party, I've agreed to a 
provision that says - for instance, at paragraph (b)(iv) the relevant 
union shall where requested by union members be a party to the 
agreement, and at the first paragraph of (c) workplace agreements 
shall be signed by the parties, being the employer, the employees and 
the union, where requested by members. 
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PRESIDENT:    I'm not certain that I'd be able to accept that clause, 
the way it's written. 

MR PATERSON:    I was just going to mention one other matter. The 
clause you are looking at would be the clause that was provided at the 
last hearing, or the clause - I'm presuming that the commission hasn't 
received Mr Cameron's amendment. 

PRESIDENT:    No.  

MR PATERSON:    The issue that we discussed at the last hearing was 
the fact that it didn't include what is in the current award in terms of 
point (d) which - I'll find it in the current award. In the Clerical and 
Administrative Employees Award, there is a (d) - any agreement which 
seeks to vary a provision of this award shall be referred to the 
commission.  

I'm happy to provide a copy of that page to the commission now in 
terms of -  

PRESIDENT:    Yes, I'd appreciate that. 

MR PATERSON:    - the changes. There are some changes there which 
may or may not satisfy. That's the only copy of that I have at the 
moment, but you'll see from that -  

PRESIDENT:    Just give me a little time. We'll go off the record and I'll 
take some time to read it. 

MR PATERSON:    I've added into paragraph (a) some other matters 
and you'll note that the other changes are amended there. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes, okay. We'll go off the record. 

OFF RECORD 3.00pm   

ON RECORD 3.12pm 
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PRESIDENT:    As a result of that discussion, as I've indicated to you 
off record, I will give further consideration to the proposed new 
workplace agreements clause, as tendered to me, I think in the only 
document that you have of it, Mr Paterson. Is that right? 

MR PATERSON:    No, that's fine. I've got it on computer so you can 
keep that. 
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PRESIDENT:    Together with all the spelling mistakes. 

MR PATERSON:    This document that I have in front of me at the 
moment, that you have only that single clause from, is printed off from 
an e-mail that I got from Mr Cameron. 

PRESIDENT:    They're dreadful, those e-mails. All right. Thank you. 
we'll move on.  

MR PATERSON:    I believe the next clause is the disputes and 
grievance procedures clause and Mr Cameron has indicated a 
preference for the standard clause in state awards or if not standard, 
then simplified to a five subparagraph clause, which says in the first 
instance: The matter discussed between the employee and the 
employee's immediate supervisor and then if not settled a workplace 
delegate representative, supervisor and manager where settlement fails 
or the grievance is of a nature that if direct discussion was 
inappropriate the employee may notify the union and the union takes 
it up with the employer and this clause not limiting any rights to take 
disputes to the commission. 

I note in passing, in those terms, that the Clerical and Admin Award 
doesn't have a disputes and grievance procedure in it, so this is a 
clause common to many other awards of the state commission. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. 

MR PATERSON:    Which reduces a few numbers of pages out of the 
order. The award compliance, one matter there, the right of entry, 
would be as -  

PRESIDENT:    That's not in this one. Oh, yes, it's a couple of pages 
over. The next item I've got is, structural efficiency, then it moves to 
top help. 

MR PATERSON:    Sorry, you're correct. I've just missed that. 
Structural efficiency is still there. My pages are out of order. Yes, 
structural efficiency remains the same and directly lifted from the 
Clerical and Administrative Award. The occupational health and safety 
part contains a small variation against, I believe, the Clerical and 
Administrative Award, which just added the words based on fair wear 
and tear or accidental damage in work hours to the end of that clause. 
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The right of entry is as read, just as per the Act. That's in accordance 
with the award review process. The union representatives' clause is a 
clause that the TTCI have indicated they don't agree with and further 
discussions will be relied on that.  

The only other matter I believe I probably need to address is that the 
formatting and the part structure of the award is in accordance with 
the award review principle of the commission and the drafts and 
models that came out of the conferences that we had here before 
yourself. The submission I believe and I believe it's a submission that 
would be supported by the employers, is that this award if so made in 
accordance with the draft order as we have discussed but as is yet to 
be finally put to you, would not adversely affect the economy of the 
state or offend the public interest. The making of this award is entirely 
consistent with the commission's powers and Wage Fixing Principles. If 
the commission pleases. 
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PRESIDENT:    Very good. Thanks, Mr Paterson. Yes, Mr Watson? 

MR WATSON:    Mr President, I don't intend to go through to the 
clauses that Mr Paterson has but we accept that what Mr Paterson has 
said to you accurately reflects where these clauses have come from. 
Effectively, they are all based on other standards in commission 
awards and in fact, save and except for those matters that have been 
specifically identified both by Mr Paterson and yourself, which 
obviously may need some further attention, we hope to be in a position 
to come back to you in fact with an agreed consent order so in fact this 
award can be made. 

I should point out, I suppose, at this stage, whilst I am optimistic and 
extremely confident that that will happen, if it doesn't happen, then 
the matter, I guess, will have to be listed for arbitration before yourself 
and go through that normal process.   

We would submit, Mr President, that the award that is being made in 
this process is consistent with principle 14, the first awards principle 
of the commission. Prima facie, we are looking at existing conditions in 
other awards of the commission.  

In relation to an indication of existing standards in the industry at the 
moment, I think it's fair to say that probably most employers who are 
in this type of industry at the moment would either use the Clerical 
and Admin Award or at least would use it as a guide and certainly the 
section 55 registered agreement that I've been specifically involved in, 
which is the Red Cross Telemarketers Agreement, which Mr Paterson 
has alluded you to, in fact models itself on the Clerical and Admin 
Award both in terms and condition matters and rates of pay.  

I guess that is one specific example where the employer is using that 
particular award. I don't believe that the matters that we've talked 
about today, as I say, save and except for those ones specifically 
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identified, depart from standards of the commission and we would 
suggest that the award doesn't offend the public interest and we would 
ask that the award be made, subject to receiving an agreed draft order 
and if that is not the case, then the matter be listed for arbitration. If it 
pleases. 5 
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PRESIDENT:    Yes, thanks, Mr Watson. To you both, what sort of time 
period should we expect in terms of establishing whether or not there 
would be a consent document? While you're thinking about that, the 
reason I ask that question is operative date and I haven't been 
addressed on that. 

MR PATERSON:    In respect of operative date, I was going to rise to 
address that. I think it would be nice if it was 1 January. The first new 
award of the commission in the next century.  

PRESIDENT:    A lot of people are saying right now, that it isn't the 
next century yet. You could be excused for not believing that, given all 
the hype.  

MR PATERSON:    I must admit that I also hold to that view when 
pressed and I reckon we ought to have two new year eve parties and go 
for both. 

PRESIDENT:    I'm inclined to agree. 

MR PATERSON:    Well, next year then, 1 January 2000, I believe 
would be an appropriate date.  

PRESIDENT:    The first full pay period on or after? 

MR PATERSON:    The first full pay period on or after 1 January.  
Subject to my being able to correspond with Mr Cameron, I do believe 
that it can be done in a couple of days. 

PRESIDENT:    Good. 

MR PATERSON:    And, certainly, if there are any spelling mistakes 
that you wish to draw Mr Cameron's attention to, I'm happy to do that. 
I will be able to either fax or e-mail him tomorrow on a position on the 
matters that he has put by way of amendments to the document and 
I'll endeavour to do that this week.  

PRESIDENT:    In terms of formatting, just while you're on your feet. 
Classification descriptors causes a little bit of angst. 

MR PATERSON:    As a clause title or as -  

PRESIDENT:    No, just the way it's put together. Block capitals 
normally in our formatting system don't arrive so early in the process. 
Now, it may well have been pinched straight out of Clerical and Admin. 
I know why (a), (b) and (c) have been chosen and that is because it 
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short-cuts the descriptions later and instead of using a category 
heading, it's easier to just use (b) or (c) but I think all those descriptors 
could be written in much more simple terms. For example, if we just 
go to (a) - Grading. Paragraph (i) could read: The exercise of general 
requirements specified, rather than, in (b) hereunder. Just, specified 
for this grade and (ii) general requirements could come out. In addition 
- I don't know what comes - grammatically -  
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MR WATSON:    In addition, the employees are required to exercise -  

PRESIDENT:    Exercise any one or more of the skill levels. I think, 
broad, is perhaps not a -  

MR PATERSON:    Skill requirements, given that that's what it's called. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes - set out hereunder. Then you don't have to use (b) 
and (c). I think it becomes more grammatical. If you want me to do 
that and send you a copy, I'd be happy to do that for you to have a 
look at. That would then help us out of the formatting.  

MR PATERSON:    I certainly have no issue with what you're 
proposing. Given that the numbering formatting is really the 
commission's prerogative and control, I believe to the extent that we're 
either changing it or - it may well be in fact that the (a), (b) and (c) 
aren't required at all. 

PRESIDENT:    That's right. 

MR PATERSON:    And that (1)(a) would be business services worker 
grade 1, (1)(b) would be - that's another alternative. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. 

MR PATERSON:    The issue I guess is that the further down the 
hierarchy of numbering and sub, sub paragraphs you get the more 
confusing it gets but I think often things are numbered that don't need 
to be numbered. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. I think we could get away with -  

MR PATERSON:    And (a) could be written as either a single 
paragraph. 

PRESIDENT:    I don't think it needs anything.  

MR PATERSON:    The words under, grading, could be a single 
paragraph - shall be graded where the principal functions require the 
exercise of general requirements and one or more of the specific skill 
requirements. That's all it needs to say. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes, set out in ..[inaudible].. 
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MR PATERSON:    Yes, set out below, or whatever. I think the 
important thing is not to lose the one or more, because clearly that's a 
key test of grades in this -  

PRESIDENT:    Quite so.  

MR PATERSON:    - is that you don't have to meet all the requirements 
of every skill and I think the specific skills need to - there needs to be 
some way of referring, and grade 1 is probably not the best but to go to 
grade 2, for instance, there needs to be some way of referring to the 
specific skills. I think there were probably some way of referring to - if 
you look to (c) of business services worker grade 2, all of the technical 
skills, which are read as a whole. 
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The things under skill requirements that currently have the Roman 
numerals are in fact the specific skill requirements that need some 
reference to. That's one or more of those rather than one or more of, 
say, machine. The technical one is the one where that potential - the 
broad skill levels set out in (c) hereunder, would usually be read to be 
in this case the technical skills rather than computer skill. So, there's 
a reason for it being the broad skill level in relation to technical skills 
which have other skills embedded in them.  

PRESIDENT:    Yes. 

MR PATERSON:    So there's a reason for the sense of, broad. 

PRESIDENT:    There was no reason for it in (1). 

MR PATERSON:    No. And technical skill requirements is the only 
place at which it occurs.  

PRESIDENT:    Is that right? 

MR PATERSON:    I believe that same problem doesn't arise in the 
definition of any of the other skill requirements such as secretarial or 
information handling, business supervisory or specialist. They're all 
single skill levels. It's only the technical area and maybe in that case 
the problem is the use of, skill, in the subsets of the technical skills 
and maybe if the subsets of technical skills - if we didn't use, skills. 

PRESIDENT:    It is confusing, isn't it? If it came to interpretation, I 
don't where you'd go to. 

MR PATERSON:    I'm happy for the commission to undertake that 
exercise of renumbering and reformatting to the extent necessary. I'd 
suggest that in the Roman (i) of each of the (c) skill requirements the 
word 'skill' could be deleted from the subsets so it was technical skills, 
machine operation level 2, so that it would stand alone as a skill and 
those things would be read as a whole. It may be that in that way the 
numbering can be reduced back. 
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PRESIDENT:    Just a moment. I think we might go off the record 
formally. 

OFF RECORD 3.00pm 

ON RECORD 3.37pm 

PRESIDENT:    Thanks for that discussion on the formatting of the 
classifications descriptors. Yes, Mr Watson? 
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MR WATSON:    Just one issue, Mr President, in relation to operative 
date, which I didn't actually address you on. I think at this stage I 
would prefer to not put a position to you on operative date, pending 
the production of the agreed consent order. Hopefully, that will be the 
case. The reason for that is, that I'm not sure how long it's actually 
going to take for us to actually advise businesses who are actually 
going to be covered by the scope of this award, that this award is in 
place and it will then apply to them. 

So, that being the case, it may take some time for that process to 
evolve. I'm not saying that 1 January is necessarily out of the question 
but I'd prefer to defer to Mr Cameron on that because he may have in 
fact set it up on the basis that the businesses that are going to be 
covered by this know about it and in fact they know that this is 
coming, which would be a different situation to us going and having to 
tell everyone about it, then all of a sudden they've got this award that 
applies on 1 January, together with all the other Y2K issues. 

PRESIDENT:    I was under the impression actually that part of the 
exercise that we've engaged in was actually liaising with those 
employers in the new industry, so that they were aware of what was 
going on. Your fears may not actually surface but I take your point 
and if need be, we'll have to address that later but I take it, Mr 
Watson, you'll put the suggestion of the first full pay period on or after 
1 January 2000 as a possible operative date, preferred operative date? 

MR WATSON:    Yes, that's right, Mr President. If there is reason why 
that can't be agreed to then I guess we'll have to address you on that 
at the time. 

PRESIDENT:    Yes. Nothing more, Mr Paterson? 

MR PATERSON:    Nothing further. 

PRESIDENT:    Well, thank you very much for your efforts this 
afternoon and hopefully we'll have a consent document in the 
commission's hands within a week and within the same time period 
we'll have something back to you to have a look at in respect of 
classification descriptors.  

MR PATERSON:    And the issue of the workplace agreements. 



PRESIDENT:    And I'll advise you as to the workplace agreements.  

The hearing is adjourned sine die. Thank you. 

HEARING ADJOURNED SINE DIE 3.40pm   
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